
Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 1 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the April 2, 2024, meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Drema Smith

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 7758470968

• Staff Summary: See attached.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      5



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the February 20, 2024,
meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Jim Hindle

Department: Clerk/Treasurer     Contact Number: 17758470969

• Staff Summary: See attached.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: none

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       6



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING

2/20/2024 10:00 AM   
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NV 

_________________________________________________________ 

MEETING MINUTES 

JAY CARMONA CLAY MITCHELL LANCE GILMAN 
CHAIRMAN           VICE-CHAIRMAN         COMMISSIONER

ANNE LANGER         JIM HINDLE 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY CLERK-TREASURER 

Roll Call 
√ Commission Chairman Jay Carmona, √ Commission Vice-Chair Clay Mitchell,

√ Commissioner Lance Gilman, √ District Attorney Anne Langer, √ Clerk & Treasurer Jim Hindle,
√ County Manager Austin Osborne, √ Deputy District Attorney Brian Brown

√Assessor Jana Seddon
√ Justice of the Peace Eileen Herrington
√ Recorder Dru McPherson
√ Sheriff Mike Cullen
√ County Administrative Officer Honey Coughlin
√ Fire Chief Jeremy Loncar
√ Comptroller Jennifer McCain
√ Business Development Manager Lara Mather
√ Community Development Director Pete Renaud

□ Emergency Management Director Adam Wilson
√ Human Resources Director Brandie Lopez
□ IT Director James Deane
√ Planning Manager Kathy Canfield
√ Public Works Director Jason Wierzbicki
□ Operations and Project Manager Mike Northan
□ Senior Center Director Stacy York
√ Tourism Director Todd Tuttle

Other:

Total Attendance: 38 In-Person: 12 Zoom: 26 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Commission Chairman called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE



3. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): None

4. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
agenda for the February 20, 2024, meeting.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today’s agenda as presented. Seconded
by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

5. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
I. For possible action, approval of business license first readings:

A. Bayview Engineering & Construction Inc. – Contractor / 5040 Robert J Matthews
Pkwy ~ El Dorado Hills, CA

B. Golden Gate Terminal LLC – General / 300 Ireland Dr. ~ Sparks, NV
C. Quanta Telecommunication Solutions LLC – Contractor / 1580 Kleppe Ln ~ Sparks, NV
D. The C S M Group Inc. – Contractor / 600 E. Michigan Ave Ste. A ~ Kalamazoo, MI

II. Approval of claims in the amount of $6,185,933.50.

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today’s Consent agenda as presented. 
Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

6. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of
Resolution No. 24-720 recognizing and commending a Storey County employee who has
served 10 years of service to the county.

Human Resources Director Brandie Lopez presented an award honoring Deputy David Duke
of the Storey County Sheriff’s Office for 10 years of service to the county. Sheriff Mike
Cullen accepted on Deputy Duke’s behalf.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve Resolution No. 24-720 recognizing and
commending a Storey County employee, namely David Duke, who has served 10 years of
service to the county. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

7. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of
Resolution No. 24-721 recognizing and commending a Storey County employee who has
served 15 or more years of service to the county.



Ms. Lopez recognized Deputy Frank Valdez of the Storey County Sheriff's Office for 15 years 
of service to the county. Resolution was read. Sheriff Cullen accepted on behalf of Deputy 
Valdez. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve Resolution No24-721 recognizing and 
commending a Storey County employee who has served 15 or more years of service to the 
county. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Public Works Director Jason Wierzbicki
• The department received the 5600 Plow on Feb. 20, and the snowblower is on the way.
• Repair of Taylor Street is moving along, with recent snow being a slight snag. The project

timeline is 90 days, but it could be less.

Business Development Manager Lara Mather 
• Business Development Officer Lara Mather and Commissioner Clay Mitchell went to

Washington DC and presented the 2025 funding requests. Storey County hosted a dinner
for regional officials and discussed matters of regional concern.

Administrative Officer Honey Caughlin 
• Progress is being made on the Lockwood Senior Center project. Groundbreaking on the

new facility will be May 1. Lobbyists, senators, and others who supported the project will
be invited. The project is expected to take 14 months to complete. There will be a town
hall at 5:30 p.m. April 18 at the Lockwood Senior Center to discuss plans and
construction issues.

VCTC Tourism Director Todd Tuttle 
• The VCTC board meeting was on Feb. 8 with new members Deborah Hayward, Gretchen

Lavach, and Paul Hoyle.
• 2024 event calendars are available. To obtain one, contact the Visitors Center.
• The next mix and mingle will be March 12 at 6 p.m. Piper’s Opera House.
• The next VCTC board meeting is at 10 a.m. March 14 at the Courthouse.
• On Saturday, March 16 the Mountain Oyster Fry will begin at 11 a.m. with the St.

Patrick’s Day Parade to begin at noon.
• The Father-Daughter Day event will be April 10.

Human Resources Manager Brandie Lopez 
• There is a new program for job applicants to apply online. It should be complete in Mid-

May. Right now, applicants can download an application and mail it into the office.



Clerk/Treasurer 
• The Secretary of State’s website suffered technical glitches on issues of voting history.

Election results were not affected. The Storey County system has not been compromised
and voters information is current and uncompromised.

• Candidate filing for the June Primary runs from March 4-15. The office is working with
the ABBI Agency to put the information on the Storey County website under the
Clerk/Treasurer section.

• The June 6 primary is for local and state candidates, with information on the Secretary
of State’s website. Storey County candidates must file with the Storey County Clerk’s
Office.

9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
• Commissioner Mitchell described his recent trip to Washington DC, noted meetings with

federal officials and the Storey County sponsored dinner for Northern Nevada county
officials.

• Commissioner Carmona noted the passing of Virginia City residents Barbara Bowers
and Jeanne Tucker.

10. 10:30 A.M. PUBLIC HEARING: 10:30 a.m. public hearing on proposed Bill No. 139,
Ordinance No. 24-327 an ordinance adding Article III District No. 2 to Chapter 3.50 to
the Storey County Code creating Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 2
and providing for other properly related matters.

County Manager Austin Osborne said this public hearing was for the ordinance that is 
required for public comment, for Economic Diversification District #2. This was heard on 
Feb. 6 and Feb. 15, and today. There are amendments. A copy of the ordinance is in the 
Commissioners packet on the Storey County website under Agendas: Board of 
Commissioners, on Page 41. 

Mr. Osborne said: 

Subsection 3.50.330 the language in A-E, should not be stricken out.  
Subsection 7 regarding the test area, should not be stricken out. 
Section 3.50 says “on or after” with a blank. The date of July 1, 2024 has been confirmed 
with the Governor’s Office and should fill the blank.  
For Section 3.50.370 the date reimbursement may be used to defray following costs is on or 
after Dec. 1, 2023.  

Mr. Osborne read the Ordinance title. 

Public Comment: None 



Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to close the public hearing on the proposed Bill 
No. 139, Ordinance No. 24-327.Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

11. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Second Reading of Bill No. 139 Ordinance No.
24-327, an ordinance adding Article III District No. 2 to Chapter 3.50 to the Storey County
Code creating Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 2 and providing for other
properly related matters.

Mr. Osborne said on Feb. 6 and Feb. 15 held hearings. Adjustments have been made, and any 
motion will incorporate those changes. He then read the title of the Ordinance for the record. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve Second Reading of Bill No. 139 
Ordinance No. 24-327 adding Article III District No. 2 to Chapter 3.50 to the Storey County 
Code creating Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 2 to incorporate the 
changes noted during the public hearing, and providing for other properly related matters. 
Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

12. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action to approve
the Governmental Services Agreement for Storey County Economic Diversification District
No. 2 (EDD2) between Storey County and Tesla, Inc. defraying county costs providing law
enforcement, administration, infrastructure, and other services to EDD2. This item was heard
at the 02/06/24 and 02/15/24 board meetings for public discussion and continued to this
meeting for possible action.

Mr. Osborne said there have been amendments to this document. A copy of the agreement is
in the Commissioners packet and available on the Storey County website under Agendas ->
Board of Commissioners.

Mr. Osborne listed the amendments as follows:
• Subsection 5, the table is modified to add a column specifying total annual payments.
• Subsection 5D, parties will meet upon request to evaluate fees.
• Section 8 A, The wording changes from “adverse to the county” to adverse to other

party.” References to Tesla and the County in various places changes to “the party” or
“the other party.”

• In the section about agreement execution add “in electronic format.”
• The agreement provides for nonbinding mediation in case of disputes.

Public Comment: None 

Motion: 12. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 



I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Governmental Services Agreement for 
Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 2 (EDD2) between Storey County and 
Tesla, Inc. defraying county costs providing law enforcement, administration, infrastructure, 
and other services to EDD2. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

13. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and consider possible action to
approve a cooperative agreement between Storey County and the State of Nevada
Department of Taxation specifying the dates and procedure for distribution to Storey County
of Economic Diversification District No. 2 revenues pledged pursuant to Ordinance No. 24-
327 and a Reimbursement Agreement with Tesla.

Mr. Osborne introduced Deputy District Attorney Brian Brown for discussion.

Mr. Brown said this is a cooperative agreement between the state Department of Taxation and
Storey County. This is the understanding the state will accept our pledges, and describes the
project and methodology. The abatements are processed and will be returned to Tesla. He
said it was like the prior agreement in 2014.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve a cooperative agreement between
Storey County and the State of Nevada Department of Taxation specifying the dates and
procedure for distribution to Storey County of Economic Diversification District No. 2
revenues pledged pursuant to Ordinance No. 24- 327 and a Reimbursement Agreement with
Tesla. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

14. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible consideration
approving a Reimbursement Agreement for Storey County Economic Diversification District
No. 2 pursuant to Ordinance No. 24-327 between Storey County and Tesla, Inc., and other
properly related matters.

Mr. Osborne again introduced Mr. Brown. 
Mr. Brown said this was another agreement for reimbursement which effects the manner in 
which they will receive their abatements. Changes include the name Tesla Inc. replacing 
Tesla Motors Inc., and some stricken language. On page 2, recently received confirmation 
from the governor’s office is Dec. 1, 2023, and on page 4 Paragraph G, there is a strikeout to 
correct information based on input from the state. 

Public Comment: None 



Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Reimbursement Agreement for 
Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 2 pursuant to Ordinance No. 24-327 
between Storey County and Tesla, Inc., to include the changes noted on the record, and other 
properly related matters. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

15. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval directing
the Comptroller to notify the Nevada Department of Taxation of the property tax rate the
Storey County Board of Commissioners propose to levy for fiscal year 2024-2025.

Comptroller Jennifer McCain said due to various commissioners expressing interest in
lowering the tax rate in the past, she contacted the state Department of Taxation for
information. From what she learned; Ms. McCain included two possible letters to Taxation.
One has no change in the tax rate and the other indicates there would be a change. Ms.
McCain recommended the first letter.

Ms. McCain said she contacted Kelly Langley and Evelyn Barrigan of the NVTax for
information. She was told that the elements to consider were the tax rate, 3.46, and the 3
percent tax caps for residential. Calculations work together so local governments have
sufficient funds for critical safety and administrative departments, and that lowering the tax
rate would lower abatements and not significantly lower rates residents pay. After reviewing
information from the Assessor’s Office, Ms. McCain said she concluded that Ms. Langley’s
theory was correct. She said that the county could lower some, but it would take more
investigation. Abatements would be significantly reduced by 6.7 percent, which results in the
reverse of what was being sought. The highest tax reduction will be for commercial, with less
for residential. It would also lower proceeds to the General Fund, which funds County
Offices, departments, and general operations.

Commissioner Gilman said he did not want to make major changes to the tax rate.

Ms. McCain said the abatements affected would be those in place due to the tax caps.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Comptroller to inform Nevada
Department of Taxation that the Storey County Board of Commissioners propose to levy a
property tax rate of 3.4607 in fiscal year 2024-2025. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote:
Motion passed unanimously.

16. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: For consideration and possible approval of
non-budgeted expenses in the amount of $9,988.75 to purchase new Preliminary Breath Test
(PBT) devices for Sheriff's Office Patrol Deputies and the Detention Facility. This expense
should have no effect on the budget as the funds are to be reimbursed to the Sheriff's Office
by the Joining Forces Grant program. A fiscal year 2024 and/or 2025 budget adjustment will



be made to correct a possible current-year budget overage if the reimbursement is not 
received in the current fiscal year. The Comptroller has reviewed and approved this purchase. 

Sheriff Cullen said the office re-joined the “Joining Forces” program with other law 
enforcement agencies to help with crashes.   

Deputy David Ranson said that the Office had received a $10,000 grant for traffic 
enforcement, and wants to use that to purchase 20 breath test devices to replace older models 
that no longer worked. These will aid deputies in DUI cases and for juvenile use of alcohol. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to authorize the non-budgeted expense in the 
amount of $9,988.75 to purchase new Preliminary Breath Test (PBT) devices for Sheriff's 
Office Patrol Deputies and the Detention Facility. This expense should have no effect on the 
budget as the funds are to be reimbursed to the Sheriff's Office by the Joining Forces Grant 
program. A fiscal year 2024 and/or 2025 budget adjustment will be made to correct a possible 
current-year budget overage if the reimbursement is not received in the current fiscal year. 
Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

17. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of approval of Task Order 65 to
the Storey County – DOWL Master Service Agreement causing reimbursement related to
Storey County Master Plan update assistance. DOWL will be reimbursed for time and
materials related to assisting County staff with the Storey County Master Plan update, not to
exceed $65,000 for the remaining Fiscal Year 23/24. Assistance with the Master Plan update
is already a part of the Planning Department budget for the Fiscal Year 23/24.

Planning Manager Kathy Canfield said this was for assistance with updating the Master Plan.
She has identified areas where assistance would be provided. The cost is already covered in
the budget.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve Task Order 65 to the Storey County –
DOWL Master Service Agreement causing reimbursement related to Storey County Master
Plan update assistance, not to exceed $65,000 for the Fiscal Year 23/24 as identified in the
Planning Department Fiscal Year 23/24 budget. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion
passed unanimously.

18. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to direct
county staff to begin capital improvement projects, which are currently scheduled in the
Storey County Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Year 25, now in Fiscal Year 24.



Administrative Officer Honey Coughlin said the total amount has changed. She said there are 
two large grant projects that did not progress as anticipated so there is roughly $4,400,000 
available in the fund for the FY24 budget. This results in some projects in the 2025 CIP that 
can now be pursued. She recommends the board approves these moving these projects 
forward. 

Among the projects added to the list are: 
• The Justice Court parking lot - $150,000.
• 3 generators for Community Development, Gold Hill Sewer, and Justice Court -

$300,000.
• Equipment fencing in Mark Twain for Public Works equipment storage - $50,000.
• Mark Twain Community Center, electrical upgrade, roofing, and modifications for

food pantry.  upgrade electrical, roofing and some modifications for food pantry -
$500,000. Just planning and design. - $100,000.

• Community Development parking.  - $150,000.
• Residents request to have swing set back to the Highlands’ Park. There is money

for that in the park fund. - $12,000.
• VCH Community Center, a $450,000 total cost. To start now with the design,

$45,000.
• McCarran complex sign, 10,000.
• Lights for Courthouse Parking Lot, - $140,000.
• Flagpole for Justice Court, - $15,000.
• Retrofit on bathroom in the Storey County Complex, -  $250,000 with $25,000 for

the design.
• Piper’s Opera House’ sign needs to be redone, - $5,000.
• The Emergency Manager’s Office needs electrical and HVAC upgrades, -

$35,000.
• The Sheriff’s Office needs a box for evidence storage, $10,000.
• Security for building entrances, including the TRI Complex, - $100,000 and

Public Works, - $50,000.
• Courthouse window security film, - $30,000.
• Mark Twain Community Center hook-up to the network, $75,000. Stacy York will

have offices there and will need access.
• Installing traffic devices on L Street to slow traffic, - $10,000
• Fairground road traffic signal railroad realignment, - $400,000
• Traffic signal at Milan/Electric in TRIC, design portion, - $150,000
• Water filter replacement, $75,000.
• Water treatment center, $700,000 to replace open area with tank.
• Silver City Water Main replacement $2.6 million for replacement, with design at

$264,000.
• 5-mile reservoir security cameras, - $80,000.
• Countywide facility study, $250,000



Total Projects - $3,226,000. 

Comptroller Jennifer McCain said funds may have to be loaned for the water project to the 
water district. She said money is available is in the CP fund. Some are earmarked to use 
infrastructure money.  

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to direct county staff to undertake the proposed 
projects, which were previously scheduled in the Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Year 
25, in the current Fiscal Year 24 as the Capital Fund budget allows. Seconded by: Lance 
Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

19. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Update, discussion, and provide direction to
county staff, lobbyists, and board legislative representatives regarding Storey County’s
position on partial and total tax abatement programs of Senate Bill 1 (2014) and the
Governor’s Office of Economic Development in relation to discussions about regional
development authorities, economic development incentives, and other state programs
scheduled for discussion at the February 28, 2024, Nevada Legislative Interim Standing
Committee on Revenue.

Mr. Osborne deferred to Commissioner Mitchell, who requested this item be on the agenda.

Commissioner Mitchell said interim Legislative committees are meeting which generates
work for us to do., the major items were presentations by the Governor’s Office were given
to the Interim Revenue Committee. He said he would like Storey County officials and/or
lobbyists prepare to make public comments and testimony.

Commissioner Gilman believes it would be prudent to be involved.

Commissioner Mitchell asked that direction be given to staff to be involved in future
conversations.

Mr. Osborne asked what specifically would this board like us to talk about? There may only
be opportunity for public comment.

Public Comment: Hugh Gallagher said he was taken aback hearing from congressional
representatives that it is not appropriate for the state to do the money grab. He fears that once
the State gets a foothold in the process it will be tough to get them out, so whatever we can
do to nip this in the bud we should pursue.



Will Adler  of Silver State Government Relations said a good way to do this is provide 
formal written comment directed to the committee chair offering background and 
perspectives from Storey County. 

Commissioner Mitchell said we should direct staff to show our willingness to share a local 
perspective, the areas we would like to see addressed are fire districts and schools, and then 
expressing concerns about previous attempts to divert post abatement funds. 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to direct county staff, lobbyists, and board 
legislative representatives regarding Storey County’s position on partial and total tax 
abatement programs of Senate Bill 1 (2014) and the Governor’s Office of Economic 
Development in relation to discussions about regional development authorities, economic 
development incentives, and other state programs scheduled for discussion at the February 
28, 2024, Nevada Legislative Interim Standing Committee on Revenue. I further move to 
instruct these individuals to prepare written comments covering the areas discussed on the 
record, and if appropriate, make verbal comments at the beginning of the meeting. First 
express willingness to share a local perspective on these areas and the experiences we have 
had, second, to make it known that there are some oversights or areas that we would like to 
see addressed in the current abatement scheme, if you will, and third, to express our concerns 
about previous attempts to re-route or change the way that post-abatement dollars are 
distributed. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

20. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: For consideration and possible approval of
business license second readings:
A. Abrams Metals – Contractor / 7260 Delta Cir. ~ Austell, GA
B. All Things Wired – Contractor / 250 Vista Blvd. Ste. 101 ~ Sparks, NV
C. Apex Sweeping – Out of County / 762 Mount Rose St. ~ Reno, NV
D. Bali Express – Food Truck / 185 Marmot Dr. ~ Reno, NV
E. Becht Industrial Group LLC – Out of County / 2150 N Indianwood Ave. ~ Broken Arrow, OK
F. Chick-Fil-A S. McCarran & 580 – Out of County / 6365 S. McCarran Blvd. ~ Reno, NV

G. Comstock Consulting Services LLC – Home Based / 166 S. Q. St. ~ Virginia City, NV
H. Danny’s Construction Company LLC – Contractor /1066 W. 3rd Ave. ~ Shakopee, MN
I. GFI Nevada LLC – Transportation / 2903 Waltham Way ~ Sparks, NV
J. Lambs Heating and Air – Contractor / 2408 Cartwright Rd. ~ Reno, NV
K. Safe Step Walk in Tub LLC – Contractor / 15262 Pipeline Ln. ~ Huntington Beach, CA
L. Schuff Steel Company – Contractor / 3003 N. Central Ave. Ste. 1500 ~ Phoenix, AZ
M. Spite House Picture Gallery & Framing – Home Based / 318 S. D St. ~ Virginia City, NV

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the second readings of business licenses 
listed under Item #20 as A-M. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 



21. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): Chris Reilly, Tesla, thanked the staff for working
together and for county leadership. This means a lot to Tesla’s ability to continue to grow. In
2014, we were making 20,000 cars a year, and 500,000 six years later. It is an incredible
milestone. We have invested $6.5 billion and work together and with county leadership. This
is a very complex series of agreements. We want to do it again with truck and cell
manufacturing.

Commissioner Gilman said Tesla is a good corporate citizen. Mr. Osborne said he
appreciated working with them.

22. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA
Commission Chairman Carmona adjourned the meeting at 11:47 a.m.

Respectfully submitted, 

____________________________________________ 
Jim Hindle 
Clerk-Treasurer 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the March 5, 2024,
meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Jim Hindle

Department: Clerk & Treasurer     Contact Number: 17758470969

• Staff Summary: See Attached.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: none

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      7



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING

3/5/2024 10:00 AM   
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NV 

_________________________________________________________ 

MEETING MINUTES 

JAY CARMONA CLAY MITCHELL LANCE GILMAN 
CHAIRMAN VICE-CHAIRMAN   COMMISSIONER 

ANNE LANGER JIM HINDLE 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY CLERK & TREASURER 

Roll Call 

√ Commission Chairman Jay Carmona, √ Commission Vice-Chair Clay Mitchell,
√ Commissioner Lance Gilman, � District Attorney Anne Langer, √ Clerk & Treasurer Jim Hindle,

√ County Manager Austin Osborne, √ Deputy District Attorney Brian Brown
□Assessor Jana Seddon
□ Justice of the Peace Eileen Herrington
√ Recorder Dru McPherson
√ Sheriff Mike Cullen
√ County Administrative Officer Honey Coughlin
√ Fire Chief Jeremy Loncar
√ Comptroller Jennifer McCain
□ Business Development Manager Lara Mather
□ Community Development Director Pete Renaud
√ Emergency Management Director Adam Wilson

√ Human Resources Director Brandie Lopez
√ IT Director James Deane
√ Planning Manager Kathy Canfield
□ Public Works Director Jason Wierzbicki
√ Operations and Project Manager Mike Northan
√ Senior Center Director Stacy York
√ Tourism Director Todd Tuttle

Other:
√ NEW Grants Manager Sara Sturtz

Total Attendance: 38 In-Person: 18 Zoom: 20 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Commissioner Carmona called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE



3. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): None

4. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
agenda for the March 5, 2024, meeting.

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today’s agenda as presented. Seconded by: 
Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

5. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
minutes from the January 16, 2024, meeting.

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the minutes from our Jan, 16, 2024, 
meeting as presented. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

6. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: For possible action, approval of business
license first readings:

A. Bonanza Cantina – General / 27 N. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV
B. FS Solar Nevada LLC – Contractor / 4801 Freidrich Ln. Ste. 100 ~ Austin, TX
C. Pacific Erectors Inc. – Contractor / 4460 Yankee Hill Rd. ~ Rocklin, CA
D. The Berg Group LLC – Contractor / 1225 Lakeview Dr. ~ Chaska, MN

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today’s Consent agenda as presented. 
Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Sheriff’s Office
• Sheriff Mike Cullen thanked Public Works staff for keeping the roads clear through the

storm. He also thanked the many citizens who helped their neighbors.
• Staff are attending the Western States Sheriffs Association Conference and Training in

Reno.

Fire District 
• The department will be hosting an EMS refresher course.
• The Adopt-a-Hydrant program is receiving good response from residents.
• Residents are encouraged to join the Ambulance Subscription Program.
• The district is finalizing FEMA grants.



Public Works 
• Operations & Projects Manager Mike Northan – filling-in for Director Wierzbicki – said

the department struck a good balance between plowing and snow removal, which helped
get through the recent storm.

• Both residents and businesses are asked not to throw snow into the streets as it hinders
removal and clean-up.

• The Operations and Projects Office is working with the VCTC and the Senior Center on
FEMA grants for the Fairgrounds and Lockwood Community Center projects.

Business Development/Administrative Officer 
• Administrative Officer Honey Coughlin presented for both Business Development and

her office. She said signs for the government offices in TRIC now say Storey County,
both on the road and on the building.

• She introduced Sara Sturtz, the county’s new Grants Manager.
• U.S. Rep. Mark Amodei said 2.4 million was earmarked for the Gold Hill Water Project

and the Sheriff’s substation. Both projects have his support and should be awarded in
2025.

Emergency Management 
• Emergency Management Director Adam Wilson  said that after the recent storms, Nevada

is at 94 percent of its annual snowpack.
• The Director spoke at the Western Nevada Emergency Preparedness Association meeting

and plans to address a meeting at the Governor’s Mansion on water protection.
• Quad County Health will purchase bleeding control kits for each county vehicle at $5,000

each.
• Fire and sheriff’s staff conducted desktop active shooter training and more will be done

on March 25.
• The Safety Committee is being revamped.
• Four of nine FEMA projects for mitigation of storm impact have been approved for

reimbursement.
• In April, emergency management instructors from Austin TX will come here to train

Quad County emergency staff for special events preparedness.

VCTC 
• Tourism Director Todd Tuttle thanked Public Works and the Sheriff’s Office for their

response to the recent snowstorms.
• The Father-Daughter Day event will be April 10, with dances at Piper’s Opera House at

12:30 p.m., 2 p.m. and 3:30 p.m. The first dance is sold out.
• The Go West tour Feb. 25-29 brought travel professionals from Canada, India, and China

to Norther Nevada but the storm reduced participation in a recent fam tour to VC from
200 to 8.

• The next Mix and Mingle is at Piper’s Opera House at 6 p.m. March 12.



• There will be a Cultural Corridor meeting at Piper’s Opera House.
• The Mountain Oyster Fry will set up at 11 a.m. on Friday, March 15; the event will be

Saturday, March 16 beginning at 10 a.m. The street will be closed from 6 a.m. to 5 p.m.
from Sutton Street to the crosswalk past Union Street. The parade will start at noon from
the Sheriff’s Office and the entire street will be closed for the parade. There will be a
saloon crawl. Comedian Kevin Farley will perform at Piper’s Opera House at 7 p.m.

• The Chili Cookoff is on May 18-19 at 10 a.m.
• The Renegade Orchestra will perform at Piper’s Opera House at 7 p.m. on April 6.
• The Celebration of Heroes Parade will be at noon on May 25.
• A Fast Car rally on Saturday, June 1 will feature racing cars from the 1920s.

Community Development 
• Director Pete Renaud said the department is seeing almost record-breaking numbers for

permitting and inspections.
• The department is looking forward to using a new management system.
• On the website are monthly dashboards to check and track permitting numbers.

Senior Services 
• Director Stacy York said a soup cookoff will be held in Lockwood at 5 p.m. March 23.
• The Virginia City Senior Center will provide meals for the Lockwood Senior Center

instead of Washoe County starting April 1.
• Bob Hastings was introduced as Senior Services’ new Community Resource Coordinator.

County Manager 
• County Manager Austin Osborne Thanked the county staff for snow removal during the

storm. He explained that every department was affected in one way or another.
• Representatives are still needed for the board of appeals. Spots are available for people

with a construction background and a fire prevention background.

Clerk & Treasurer 
• Clerk & Treasurer Jim Hindle explained that the Board of Equalization meeting was

concluded, with one appeal anticipated to go to the state.
• The fiscal year’s 4th and final property tax payment was due March 4th, but given the

weather, the office will provide a grace period through the of this week.
• Thanks to all departments for getting month-end packets in before the weather hit.
• District Court continues to have an increasing caseload trend from previous years.
• Michelle Mooreheard has joined the Office team and after training in the basics of office

procedures and systems will be tasked with reopening the Vehicle Registration window.
The County’s DMV services are not expected to open until after DMV training and
qualification is complete – probably sometime in June.



 

8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)  
• Commissioner Jay Carmona thanked county staff, NDOT and residents for their handling 

of the storm. 
 
9. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action to adopt the 

Long Valley Creek Flood Hazard Mitigation Plan. JUB Engineering will be giving a short 
presentation of the plan. Planning Manager Kathy Canfield said this is a final step in the 
process for flood mitigation in Lockwood, and it was presented to the Lockwood Community 
on Jan. 25. 

 
She introduced Jeff Weagel of JUB Engineering, who gave a PowerPoint presentation 
detailing the plan to identify risks for flooding of Long Valley Creek, to evaluate the costs and 
benefits of mitigation efforts, and establish future efforts and avenues for grant funding. He 
added that the study covered Long Valley Creek rather than the Truckee River, as the creek 
was more prone to flooding in the Lockwood area. 

 
Public Comment: None 

 
Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to adopt the Long Valley Creek Flood Hazard 
Mitigation Plan. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

 
10. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to direct 

county staff to complete the replacement of the water filter media in the water treatment 
system at the cost of $100,000, not to exceed $105,000. The commission approved the 
expenditure of $75,000 for this project at the February 5, 2024, Board of County 
Commissioners’ meeting. This project cost has not been updated with the current estimate of 
$100,000. 

 
Administrative Officer Honey Coughlin said the filter had not been replaced since 1997, and 
needed to be replaced now. She said funding would come from the Infrastructure Fund and 
not the Capital Improvement Fund. 

 
Public Comment: None 

 
Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve county staff to complete the 
replacement of the water filter media in the water treatment system at the cost of $100,000, 
not to exceed $105,000. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

 
11. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to 

authorize county staff to enter into an agreement with DOWL to provide GIS support for 
Phase 2 of the Comstock Historic District Survey at the cost of $10,000.  

 



Ms. Coughlin said this is a continuation of a project that had work don on it in the recent 
past. She applied for $50,000 and the match was expected to be about $10,000, but the 
County was awarded the entire grant amount of $60,000! 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to authorize county staff to enter into an agreement 
with DOWL to provide GIS support for Phase 2 of the Comstock Historic District Survey at 
the cost of $10,000. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

12. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to
authorize county staff to enter into an agreement with DOWL to complete a Preliminary
Architect Report and Environmental Report for Phase 1 of the Lead Siphon Replacement
Project in the approximate amount of $1,147,870.

Ms. Coughlin said this entire project was estimated to be $12 million. It is broken down into
five phases. This phase is grant-funded by the Nevada Department of Environmental
Protection. This will cover the architectural and environmental report. Each year more
funding will be sought.

Public Comment: Matt Van Dine, Senior Project Manager with DOWL, thanked the county
staff for their work on this project. The project will cover from I580 to top of siphon.
Inclusion of full design will let us get the line prepared for future work.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to authorize county staff to enter into an agreement
with DOWL to complete a Preliminary Architect Report and Environmental Report for Phase
1 of the Lead Siphon Replacement Project in the approximate amount of $1,147,870.
Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

13. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY HIGHWAY BOARD

14. DISCUSSION ONLY: Report from Public Works Department regarding roads and highways
in Storey County.

Operations and Projects Manager Mike Northan said the Lousetown Road project would be
going to bid in two weeks. He said the staff was currently working on the Roads Capital
Improvement Project. He also thanked road crews for their efforts during the recent storms.

Public Comment: None

15. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible action to direct staff to
develop a scope of work and create a Request for Qualifications to outsource the preparation
of a parking study to address parking and other related issues in Virginia City.



Kathy Canfield said a parking study was last done in 1993 and that although the town has not 
physically changed that much since then, the function of the town is changing. This study is 
looking to Identify different topics to include from the previous study, including the scope of 
work. 

Commissioner Gilman said he has been looking to do this for many years, and that Virginia 
City needed more parking. Commissioner Mitchell said for the future of county offices and 
schools, we need greater options and flexibility. 

Ms. Canfield said flexibility could be worked in, but that something will always come up. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to direct staff to develop a scope of work and 
create a Request for Qualifications to outsource the preparation of a Virginia City Parking 
Study. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

16. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSING
BOARD

17. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: For consideration and possible approval of the
First reading for On-Sale/Off-Sale Liquor License. The applicant is Mitanshu Chandna, VC
Mart Gas, Liquor & Grocery located at 351 North C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

Deputy Frank Valdez said he found no disqualifiers for the liquor license.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the First Reading On-Sale/Off-Sale
Liquor License. The applicant is Mitanshu Chandna, VC Mart Gas, Liquor & Grocery
located at 351 North C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote:
Motion passed unanimously.

18. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

19. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: To authorize the county manager to accept and
sign a proposal for topographic survey services from Lumos and Associates for the B Street
Wall Repair project in an amount not to exceed $6,700.00. This is part of the FEMA
reimbursed work from the heavy rain event of April 2023.



Operations and Projects Manager Mike Northan said this survey was necessary after the 
failure of the old stone retaining wall on B Street near Sutton Street. He said we were looking 
to preserve the historic stone blocks in place. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to authorize the County Manager to accept and 
sign a proposal for topographic survey services from Lumos and Associates for the B Street 
Wall Repair project in an amount not to exceed $6,700.00. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

20. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: For consideration and possible approval of
business license second readings:

A. Bayview Engineering & Construction Inc. – Contractor / 5040 Robert J Matthews
Pkwy ~ El Dorado Hills, CA

B. Golden Gate Terminal LLC – General / 300 Ireland Dr. ~ Sparks, NV
C. Quanta Telecommunication Solutions LLC – Contractor / 1580 Kleppe Ln ~ Sparks, NV
D. The C S M Group Inc. – Contractor / 600 E. Michigan Ave Ste. A ~ Kalamazoo, MI

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve second readings of business licenses 
under Item #20 listed as A-D. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

21. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): County Manager Austin Osborne said the county is
going through significant changes with demands from the state, the federal government, the
industrial park, residential growth, from everything and from all directions., We are looking
at revenues and budgets. I want to commend our departments, every one of them, for at every
meeting they are coming forward with ideas and plans: whether it is master plans, strategic
plans, working with DOWL Engineering to come up with engineering plans, water resource
plans, it really is a sign that the county is preparing to respond and dedicate resources to our
communities. But also, to plan and act in a responsible manner. Gone are the days when the
County was simple enough that you could just dedicate money and go fix things. Things
must now be more planned out. So, I want to thank the department heads and elected officials
for that effort and know that this will continue into the foreseeable future.

22. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA 
Commissioner Carmona adjourned the meeting at 11:19 a.m.

23. CLOSED SESSION: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for
the purpose of conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor



negotiations with the Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees’ Association NAPSO Local 
9110. This meeting will commence immediately following the regular commission meeting. 

Respectfully submitted, 

____________________________________________ 
Jim Hindle 
Clerk-Treasurer 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
• A. Bab Cafe – Out of County / 303 W. 3rd St. Ste. 130 ~ Reno, NV
• B. HITT Contracting Inc. – Contractor / 2900 Fairview Park Dr. ~ Falls Church, VA
• C. JCCORD LLC – Contractor / 261 Sunpac Ave. ~ Henderson, NV
• D. Miller Concrete LLC – Contractor / 9215 Moonset Ct. ~ Reno, NV
• E. OneStudio D+A – Professional / 6151 Lakeside Dr. Ste 1100 ~ Reno, NV
• F. Silver Strike Concrete – Out of County / 3401 Fitzgerald Rd. ~ Rancho Cordova, CA

• Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I
move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

• Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 775-847-0966

• Staff Summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioner's meeting for approval.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

     8  I



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office March 25, 2024 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the April 02, 2024 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

FIRST READINGS: 

A. Bab Cafe – Out of County / 303 W. 3rd St. Ste. 130 ~ Reno, NV

B. JCCORD LLC – Contractor / 261 Sunpac Ave. ~ Henderson, NV

C. Miller Concrete LLC – Contractor / 9215 Moonset Ct. ~ Reno, NV

D. OneStudio D+A – Professional / 6151 Lakeside Dr. Ste 1100 ~ Reno, NV

E. Silver Strike Concrete – Out of County / 3401 Fitzgerald Rd. ~ Rancho Cordova, CA

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to direct county staff to begin researching the
process of subdividing the county-owned land adjacent to Miner’s Park which is
occupied by the Virginia City Community Center operated by Community Chest, Inc.
and located at 175 Carson Street, Virginia City, Nevada, and for potential future transfer
of ownership of said property to the Community Chest, Inc.

• Recommended motion: I _(commissioner), move to approve directing county staff to
begin researching the process of subdividing the county-owned land adjacent to Miner’s
Park which is occupied by the Virginia City Community Center operated by Community
Chest, Inc. and located at 175 Carson Street, Virginia City, Nevada, and for potential
future transfer of ownership of said property to the Community Chest, Inc.

• Prepared by: Lara Mather

Department: Business Development     Contact Number: 17758470986

• Staff Summary: The Community Chest entered into an agreement with Storey County to
lease the property under the Community Chest’s Library located at 175 Carson Street.
This lot is part of the Miner’s Park property and owned by Storey County. The agreement
created unforeseen consequences for the Community Chest of owning the building, but
not the property it sits on. This condition has restricted certain private foundation
donations the Community Chest would be eligible to receive.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

      11



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of an expenditure not to exceed $10,400 to the
Nevada Division of Water Resources for the assessed value of taxable property situated
within the confines of the Groundwater Basin located in Storey County for FY2024/25
pursuant to NRS 534.040.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner), move to approve an expenditure not to exceed
$10,400 to the Nevada Division of Water Resources for the assessed value of taxable
property situated within the confines of the Groundwater Basin located in Storey County
for FY2024/25 pursuant to NRS 534.040.

• Prepared by: Honey Coughlin

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 7755463183

• Staff Summary: Pursuant to NRS 534.040.2, if the assessment is less than the cost of
collection, the County Commissioners may exempt the property owner from assessment
and appropriate money from the general fund of the county to pay the cost of assessment.
The State’s estimated assessment and other information is contained in the enclosed
March 5, 2024, letter.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

      12



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 2002  •  Carson City, Nevada 89701 •  p: (775) 684-2800 •  f: (775) 684-2811  •  water.nv.gov 

March 5, 2024 

Board of Commissioners  
Storey County 
P.O. Box 176 
Virginia City, NV 89440-0176 
Certified Mail: 9489009000276499225807 

To Whom it May Concern: 

Pursuant to the provisions of NRS 534.040(2), it is respectfully requested that you levy a special assessment 
on all taxable property situated within the confines of the Groundwater Basins located within Storey 
County, for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025.  Pursuant to NRS 534.040(2) If the assessment is 
less than the cost of collection, the County Commissioners may exempt the property owner from 
assessment and appropriate money from the general fund of the county to pay the cost of assessment. 

Please see the list below that pertains to all Basins within Storey County that require this special 
assessment. This assessment is charged as an All-Taxable Parcel (AP): 

Basin Name (Basin #) Total Assessed 

Tracy Segment (083) $8,000.00 

Dayton Valley (103) $2,400.00 

Total $10,400.00 

The amount of $10,400.00 will be required for the payment of necessary expenses for supervision of the 
groundwater basins listed above, which includes but is not limited to: special studies, water level 
measurements, crop/pumpage inventories, field investigations, aquifer tests, well driller inspections, intent 
to drill card and well log review, associated data collection and management. 

STATE OF NEVADA 

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources 

Joe Lombardo, Governor 

James A. Settelmeyer, Director 

Adam Sullivan, P.E., State Engineer 

Nevada Division of 

WATER RESOURCES 



Storey County, Board of Commissioners 
March 5, 2024 
Page 2 

We are enclosing a certificate to be signed and returned indicating that the assessment rates necessary to 
support the proposed budget have been acted on by the County Commission and that the amount has been 
certified to the Assessor. 

Sincerely, 

Adam Sullivan, P.E. 
State Engineer 

AS/jh 
Enclosure: Return Certificate 

cc: Jana Seddon, jseddon@storeycounty.org 
 Jim Hindle, clerk@storeycounty.org 

mailto:jseddon@storeycounty.org
mailto:clerk@storeycounty.org


Adam Sullivan, P.E., State Engineer 
Division of Water Resources 
901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 2002 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 

Dear Mr. Sullivan: 

I hereby certify that the State Engineer's budget for payment of necessary expenses for the supervision over 

the waters of the Storey County Groundwater Basins for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025, in the 

amount of Ten Thousand Four Hundred Dollars ($10,400.00), has been received by Storey County in 

accordance with the provisions of NRS 534.040. 

The assessment rate necessary to support the proposed budget was acted upon by the BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF STOREY COUNTY on the ____     day of           ___   , 20  _      , and the amount contained 

therein was certified to the ASSESSOR OF STOREY COUNTY. 

Respectfully submitted, 

__________________ 
COUNTY CLERK 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 1

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to remove the 2022-23 & 2023-24 Personal
Property unpaid tax bills for MH001114 in the amount of $24.50.  This Mobile Home
burned in 2019 and the Assessor's office was not notified.  This structure is
unlivable/unrepairable.

• Recommended motion: Approval.

• Prepared by: Jana Seddon

Department: Assessor     Contact Number: 775-847-0961

• Staff Summary: This mobile home is located at 255 Canal Rd.  It burned in 2019, and
the Assessor's office was not notified.  To further impound the problem, our aerial
imagery for that area did not get flown until late fall of 2020 so we did not have current
imagery when we did the reappraisal of this area.  Please see attached letter for further
details.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      13











Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: File 2024-002 Division of Large Parcels map.  The applicant is requesting a
Division of Land into Large Parcels.  Two existing large parcels of land with a total of
approximately 1,530 acres will be merged and subdivided into seven new large parcels,
all over 40 acres in size.   The subject property is located west of USA Parkway at the
Storey/Lyon County boundary, having Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 004-171-20 and 004-
181-10, Storey County, Nevada.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning
Commission and staff, the Findings under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in
compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I [Commissioner], hereby move to waive
the requirement for a Tentative Map and approve  the Division of Land into Large
Parcels, File 2024-002.  Two existing large parcels of land with a total of approximately
1,530 acres will be merged and subdivided into seven new large parcels, all over 40 acres
in size.   The subject property is located west of USA Parkway at the Storey/Lyon County
boundary, having Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 004-171-20 and 004-181-10, Storey
County, Nevada.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: See Staff Report

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

      14



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



1 

To: Storey County Board of County Commissioners 

From: Storey County Planning Department 

Meeting Date: April 2, 2024   

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, Virginia City, Nevada 

Staff Contact:  Kathy Canfield 

File: 2024-002 

Applicant: NVLCO Storey County, LLC 

Property Owners:  NVLCO Storey County, LLC 

Property Location: The property consists of two existing parcels of land located west of USA 
Parkway at the Storey County/Lyon County boundary, having Assessor Parcel 
Numbers (APN) 004-171-20 and 004-181-10.  

Request: The applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2024-002.  
Two existing large parcels of land with a total of approximately 1,530 acres will 
be merged and subdivided into seven new large parcels, all over 40 acres in size.   
The subject property is located west of USA Parkway at the Storey/Lyon County 
boundary, having Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 004-171-20 and 004-181-10, 
Storey County, Nevada.        

Planning Commission: The Planning Commission heard this request at their March 21, 2024 meeting.  
The proposed map was discussed.  There was no public in attendance that had 
comments regarding the project.  The Planning Commission voted 6-0 (with one 
absent) to recommend approval of the request.  

1. Background & Analysis

A. Site Location and Characteristics.  The existing parcels extend southwest along the
Storey/Lyon County boundary, west of USA Parkway, Storey County, Nevada.  The existing
parcels are a total of approximately 1,530 acres.  There is no existing development on the
properties.  Both parcels of land were rezoned from F Forestry zoning to I2 Heavy Industrial
zoning, at the January 16, 2024, Board of County Commissioners meeting.    Surrounding

STOREY COUNTY 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Storey County Courthouse 
26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775) 

847-1144 – Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

mailto:planning@storeycounty.org


2 

land uses include vacant Forestry zoned property to the north, west and southwest that the 
Storey County Master Plan identifies to transition to I2 Heavy Industrial zoning, and vacant 
Lyon County land to the east and southeast. 

The parcels in question are located near the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, however, the 
property is not a part of the Industrial Center and is not subject to the Development 
Agreement between the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center and Storey County.  The 2015 Storey 
County Zoning Ordinance applies to this property. 

Vicinity and Zoning Map 

Site Location 



3 

B. Proposed Project.  The applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels.  Two
existing large parcels over 40 acres will be merged and subdivided to a total of seven large
parcels over 40 acres.    Two of the seven parcels will have frontage along USA Parkway.  The
remaining parcels will have access through a provided 100-foot wide private access
easement being created with this project.  Each of the seven parcels will be larger than 40
acres in size.  Per Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), this division of land is considered a
Division of Land into Large Parcels (NRS 278.471 through 278.4725), and follows the
requirements of that section.  The proposed land uses for the parcels are not a part of this
requested approval.  A separate review and approval for any uses on the parcels will be
required at the time of proposed development.

Green are the original two parcels, yellow document the proposed seven parcel, orange are the access/drainage
easements.. 



4 

C. Application for a Division of Land into Large Parcels.  Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS)
278.471 through 278.4725 defines the requirements for Division of Land into Large Parcels
along with Storey County Code Chapter 16.40.  This project is not defined as a “Subdivision”
by either Nevada Revised Statutes or Title 16 of the Storey County Code because the parcels
being created or 40 acres or more in size.

D. Tentative/Final Map.  The Storey County Code Section 16.40.050.C allows for the Board of
County Commissioners to waive the requirement for a tentative map.  Section 16.40.050
states:

Planning staff supports the waiver of the tentative map for this project.  The proposed 
division of large parcels is straightforward and the need for analysis of road, utility and 
drainage improvements can be accomplished with the mapping provided for the level of 
review needed for this division of large parcels.   Allowing for the waiver of the tentative 
map process does not eliminate any of the review performed on the application but it does 
allow for the process of approving the final map to be streamlined for straightforward 
application requests. 

E. Water Resources.  Although this property is not located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial
Center, this parcel is within the service area of the TRI-GID.  Extension of services will be
required to serve any development that is to occur on the property.  Section 16.50.05.A
states:

Prior to accepting an application for a tentative subdivision map, tentative parcel 
map, or tentative map of division of land into large parcels which creates additional 
parcels within the county, except for the areas of the county served by a public 
water system or general improvement district water system, the applicant must 
submit to the director of planning a written and binding statement of intent to 
Storey County at the time that the final map application is approved, the type and 



5 

amount of water necessary to serve each parcel. 

Storey County staff have confirmed by phone with TRI-GID that these parcels are within 
their service area.  A “will-serve” letter is not appropriate at this time as the infrastructure 
to serve the parcels needs to be developed.  As a condition of map approval, the applicant 
will be required to obtain correspondence from TRI-GID confirming in writing that the 
parcels are within the TRI-GID service area and the parcels will be eligible for service once 
distribution infrastructure is developed.  

It should be noted that Storey County does not issue construction permits without a will-
serve letter accompanying the application.  Grading and infrastructure development permits 
may be an exception to this requirement. 

2. Use Compatibility and Compliance

A. Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones.  The following table documents land uses,
zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding the
proposed project.  There are no evident conflicts between the proposed project and Storey
County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan.  The proposed division of land into large
parcels is consistent with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations.

B. Compliance with the Storey County Code - Section 17.35 –Heavy Industrial Zones.

The zoning for the proposed new lots will be the existing I2 – Heavy Industrial.

(1) Storey County Code 17.35 Heavy Industrial Zones.  The proposed Division of Land
into Large Parcels is compliant with the zoning outlined in the Storey County Code.
The properties are currently vacant and any proposed use would be required to
comply with the permissible uses as outlined in the zoning code.  Any development
would be required to meet the required setbacks and building heights.  No
development is proposed with this application.

(2) Minimum Lot Size.  Heavy Industrial zoning requires a minimum lot area of 3 acres.
The proposed parcels meet this requirement.

C. Compliance with 2016 Storey County Master Plan

The 2016 Storey County Master Plan identifies this land as a Transition Zone from
Resources to Industrial.  The applicant did receive approval from the Board of County
Commissioners in January 2024 to rezone the property from F Forestry to I2 Heavy
Industrial.   The Division of Land into Large Parcels is not expected to change the character
of the neighborhood and is consistent with the Master Plan.



6 

3. Findings of Fact

The Storey County Planning Commission shall cite Findings in a recommended motion for approval,
approval with conditions, or denial.  The recommended approval, approval with conditions or denial
of the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels must be based on Findings.  The Findings listed
in the following subsections are the minimum to be cited. The Planning Commission may include
additional Findings in their decision.

A. Motion for Approval.  The following Findings of Fact are the minimum to be cited for a
recommendation of approval or approval with conditions. The following Findings are
evident with regard to the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels when the
recommended conditions in Section 4 are applied. At a minimum, an approval or conditional
approval must be based on the following Findings:

(1) The applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2024-002.  Two
existing large parcels of land with a total of approximately 1,530 acres will be
merged and subdivided into seven new large parcels, all over 40 acres in size.   The
subject property is located west of USA Parkway at the Storey/Lyon County
boundary, having Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 004-171-20 and 004-181-10, Storey
County, Nevada.

(2) The Division of Land into Large Parcels complies with NRS 278.471 through 278.4725
relating to the adjustment of two parcels to seven parcels, all 40 acres or more in
size.

(3) The Division of Land into Large Parcels complies with all Federal, State, and County
regulations pertaining to Parcel Maps and allowed land uses.

(4) The Division of Land into Large Parcels will not impose substantial adverse impacts
or safety hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding vicinity.

(5) The conditions of approval for the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels do
not conflict with the minimum requirements in Storey County Code Chapter 16.40
Division of Land into Large Parcels, Chapter 17.35 Heavy Industrial Zone or any other
Federal, State, or County regulations.

B. Motion for Denial.  Should a recommended motion be made to deny the Division of Land
into Large Parcels request, the following Findings with explanation of why should be
included in that motion.

(1) Substantial evidence shows that the Division of Land into Large Parcels conflicts with
the purpose, intent, and other specific requirements of Storey County Code Chapter
16.40 Division of Land into Large Parcels, Chapter 17.35 Heavy Industrial Zone, or
any other Federal, State, or County regulations, including NRS 278.471 through
278.4725.

(2) The Recommended Conditions of Approval for the Division of Land into Large
Parcels does not adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses
or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding uses.



7 

4. Recommended Conditions of Approval

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department, unless
otherwise stated.

A. Approval.  This approval is for a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2024-002.  Two
existing large parcels of land with a total of approximately 1,530 acres will be merged and
subdivided into seven new large parcels, all over 40 acres in size.   The subject property is
located west of USA Parkway at the Storey/Lyon County boundary, having Assessor’s Parcel
Numbers 004-171-20 and 004-181-10, Storey County, Nevada.

B. General requirements. The Division of Land into Large Parcels must comply with Nevada
Revised Statues (NRS) 278.471 through 278.4725 relating to the division and adjustment of
land and Chapter 16.40 of the Storey County Code.  The Division of Land into Large Parcels
must comply with Federal, State, and County regulations.

C. Final Map.   The applicant shall submit to the Storey County Planning Department a Final
Map for review and approval, whether or not the Board of County Commissioners waives
the requirement of a Tentative Map, before the Final Map is recorded with the Office of the
Storey County Recorder.  The Final Map must show all parcel boundaries, easements, and
right-of-ways.  Upon acceptance of the format, and completion of all other conditions of
approval, the Final Map may be recorded.  The Final Map must meet the form and contents
pursuant to NRS 278.472.

D. Access and Easements.  All existing streets, easements, and utility easements, whether
public or private, must remain in effect and be delineated clearly on the Final Map.   Any
utility corridor easements, including those identified in the Storey County Master Plan, shall
be shown on the Final Map.  Per NRS 278.4725, all proposed access roads shall be suitable
for use by emergency vehicles as determined by the Storey County Fire Protection District.

E. Taxes Paid. Prior to the recording of the proposed Division of Land into Large Parcels, the
Applicant shall submit to the Planning Department evidence that property taxes on the land
have been paid in full for the fiscal year.

F. Duties of the Parcel Map Preparer. The preparer of the proposed Parcel Map shall meet all
requirements pursuant to NRS 278.471 through 278.4725.

G. Null and Void. The Division of Land into Large Parcels must be recorded with the Storey
County Recorder within 12 months of the Board’s approval. If the Final Map is not recorded
by that time, this approval will become null and void.

H. Indemnification. The Property Owners warrant that the future use of land will conform to
requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal regulatory and legal
requirements; further, the Property Owners warrant that continued and future use of the
land shall so conform. The Property Owners agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and
representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or
liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this
Approval.

I. Corners.  Per NRS 278.4725, the corners of each lot are to be set by a professional land



8 

surveyor. 

J. Prior to the recording of the Final Map, the applicant shall submit to the Storey County
Planning Department written confirmation from the TRI-GID that the parcels of land
depicted on the final map are a part of the TRI-GID service area and the parcels will be
served by TRI-GID at the time infrastructure is available and prior to any construction of
development that requires water service on the parcels.

5. Public Comment

As of March 12, 2024, Staff has not received any comments on the proposed project.

6. Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action thereon
as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County Commissioners upon
which it bases its decision.

7. Proposed Motions

This Section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended
by the Planning Commission and staff in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A of this
report. Those findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and
that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown in Section 3.B.   Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the  Board of County Commissioners should be made part of either
motion.

A. Recommended Motion (motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and staff, the Findings
under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I
[Commissioner], hereby move to waive the requirement for a Tentative Map and approve
the Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2024-002.  Two existing large parcels of land with
a total of approximately 1,530 acres will be merged and subdivided into seven new large
parcels, all over 40 acres in size.   The subject property is located west of USA Parkway at the
Storey/Lyon County boundary, having Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 004-171-20 and 004-181-
10, Storey County, Nevada.

B. Alternative Motion (motion for denial)

In accordance with the Findings under section 3.B of this report and other Findings against
the recommendation for approval with conditions by the Planning Commission and staff, I
[Commissioner], hereby move to deny the Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2024-002.
Two existing large parcels of land with a total of approximately 1,530 acres will be merged
and subdivided into seven new large parcels, all over 40 acres in size.   The subject property
is located west of USA Parkway at the Storey/Lyon County boundary, having Assessor’s
Parcel Numbers 004-171-20 and 004-181-10, Storey County, Nevada.



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Special Use Permit 2024-004. The applicant requests additional building height
beyond the 75-feet allowed by the applicable zoning ordinance.  The applicant anticipates
the maximum proposed building height to be approximately 105-feet to accommodate
manufacturing equipment.  This Special Use Permit request is for a maximum height of
115-feet to allow for a buffer as final equipment and building design have not yet been
completed.  The property is located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, at 875
Innovation Way, McCarran, Storey County, NV, Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-012-08.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning
Commission and staff, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other
findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance
with the conditions of approval, I (commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit
2024-004 for additional building height beyond the 75-feet allowed by the applicable
zoning ordinance.  The applicant anticipates the maximum proposed building height to be
approximately 105-feet to accommodate manufacturing equipment.  This Special Use
Permit request is for a maximum height of 115-feet to allow for a buffer as final
equipment and building design have not yet been completed.  The property is located
within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, at 875 Innovation Way, McCarran, Storey
County, NV, Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-012-08.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: See Staff Report

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

      15



____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



1 of 9 

Storey County 
Planning Department 

Storey County Courthouse 
26 South B Street, PO Box 190, Virginia City, Nevada 89440 

Phone 775-847-1144 – Fax 775-847-0949 
planning@storeycounty.org 

To: Storey County Board of County Commissioners 

From:  Storey County Planning Department 

Meeting Date:  April 2, 2024 

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada and via 
Zoom 

Staff Contact:  Kathy Canfield 

File:  Special Use Permit File 2024-004 

Applicant: Redwood Battery Materials NV, LLC, contact Ashley Villoria 

Property Owners: Redwood Battery Materials NV, LLC 

Property Location: 875 Innovation Way, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, 
Nevada, APN 005-012-08.   

Request: The applicant requests Special Use Permit 2024-004 for additional building 
height beyond the 75-feet allowed by the applicable zoning ordinance.  The 
applicant anticipates the maximum proposed building height to be 
approximately 105-feet to accommodate manufacturing equipment.  This 
Special Use Permit request is for a maximum height of 115-feet to allow for a 
buffer as final equipment and building design have not yet been completed.  
The property is located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, at 875 
Innovation Way, McCarran, Storey County, NV, Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-
012-08.

Planning Commission:  The Planning Commission heard this request at their March 21, 2024 meeting.  A 
discussion of the project occurred and there was no public in attendance that 
had comments on the project.  The Planning Commission voted 6-0 (with one 
absent) to recommend approval of the special use permit. 



2 of 9 

1. Background & Analysis

A. Background.  This application is associated with a proposed building for the Redwood
Battery Materials campus.  This parcel is currently vacant and located immediately east
of the Redwood facility located on APN 005-011-18.  The property is located south of
Innovation Way and north of Battery Boulevard, west of USA Parkway.   The new
building is proposed to allow for manufacturing associated with recycling of batteries.
and the additional height is necessary to accommodate the anticipated equipment
needs and clearance requirements.  It is anticipated the final design will require a height
of 105-feet.  This SUP is requesting a height of 115-feet to allow for possible
modifications to the design as the final design has not yet been completed.

B. Site Location.  The project is located at 875 Innovation Way, within the Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.  The additional height will be for a
new building on the vacant parcel.

Vicinity Map 



3 of 9 

Location Map 

C. Proposed Project.  The proposed project consists of a new building on a vacant parcel
adjacent to the Redwood Materials site.  The new building will be used for
manufacturing associated with battery recycling.  As stated in the application, “The
nature of the manufacturing process and equipment required for this product
necessitates an unusually tall (3) story building.”  The overall building height is
anticipated to reach 105-feet.  This Special Use Permit requests additional height up to
a maximum of 115-feet to allow for a buffer for the final design.



4 of 9 

D. Height.  The proposed project is located within the I2 Heavy Industrial zoning within the
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.  The 1999 Storey County Zoning Code is applicable to the
property per the Storey County and Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Development
Agreement.  The maximum height allowed for the I2 zoning district is 75-feet.  A Special
Use Permit can allow for additional height.

The applicant has anticipated the maximum height of the proposed building to be 105
feet.  This Special Use Permit requests a total height of 115 feet to allow for a buffer for
when final design of the structure is completed.

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) may require that structures in close proximity
to an aviation flightpath or height in excess of 200 feet be marked, typically with marker
balls, a warning light and/or painting the structures to make them more visible to
aviation.  Because of the project location and the proposed height is less than 200 feet,
this is not expected to be needed, but as conditioned, the project will follow any
requirements necessary to comply with FAA requirements.

2. Compatibility and Compliance

A. Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones.

The following table documents land uses, zoning classifications, and master plan
designations for the land at and surrounding the proposed project.

B. Compliance with Zoning.   The proposed property is located within the Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center and is subject to the Development Agreement between the Tahoe
Reno Industrial Center and Storey County.  The 1999 Zoning Code is applicable to the
property which is identified as I2 Heavy Industrial.  The additional height beyond the
permissible 75 feet is allowed with a Special Use Permit.

C. General use allowances and restrictions.  The 1999 Storey County Code Section 17.62,
Special Uses, identifies the administration for the Board and Planning Commission for
allowing a special use permit.  The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
Special Use Permit must be based on findings of fact that the proposed use is
appropriate or inappropriate in the location.  The findings listed below are the minimum
to be cited in an approval.

(1) Complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.



5 of 9 

The proposed additional height will be associated with an industrial use 
structure that is an allowed use for the existing zoning and consistent with the 
Master Plan identification for industrial land uses within the Tahoe Reno 
Industrial Center.  As conditioned, the proposed height will be consistent with 
all Storey County Code requirements, which will be demonstrated at the time of 
construction permit review and approval.   

(2) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The proposed additional height will be located adjacent to the applicant’s
existing battery recycling facility.  The topography of the area has surrounding
hills as the backdrop when viewed from USA Parkway, with the pad for the
building at a lower elevation than the adjacent Battery Boulevard and USA
Parkway.  The height is necessary to provide for equipment and equipment
clearance for the manufacturing use proposed on the property.  The additional
height is not expected to impact any adjacent land uses.

(3) Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public
improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the
public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they
may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The proposed additional height is not expected to impact the adjacent
properties or the character of the neighborhood.  This location is within an
industrial area with similar large industrial buildings.  The structure has a
backdrop of the hills when viewed from USA Parkway and the pad for the
building is below the elevation of USA Parkway as this area along with the
adjacent parcels have been terraced into a former hillside.   Additional height
impacts to public health, safety and general welfare are not expected.

(4) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

The proposed use is not expected to require any additional governmental
service improvements.  Any additional height features or specialized equipment
that may be necessary to be consistent with County Codes (ex: Fire or Building)
will be determined during the construction permitting review process and be
incorporated into the proposed project by the applicant.



6 of 9 

D. 2016 Storey County Master Plan.   This project is located within the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial (TRI) Center which the Master Plan states “provides for light industrial, heavy
industrial, commercial, and industrial commercial uses and zones pursuant to the
Development Agreement between Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
LLC.”   The property is located in the McCarran Area Plan which the Master Plan states
“depicts a homogenous planned industrial center located toward the north-central part
of Storey County nine miles east of Lockwood. It is home to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center and is dedicated solely to manufacturing, utility power production, warehousing
and distribution, and other heavy- and light-industrial, and commercial uses.  This
industrial area has grown to become a major regional hub for distribution, alternative
energy production, digital data management, and highly intensive and experimental
industries.”  The proposed use of the structure requesting the additional height is
consistent with the heavy industrial use statements for the McCarran area of the Storey
County Master Plan.

3. Findings of Fact

A. Motion for approval.  The following Findings of Fact are evident with regards to the
requested special use permit when the recommended conditions of approval in Section
4, Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

(1) This approval is for Special Use Permit 2024-004 for additional building height
beyond the 75-feet allowed by the applicable zoning ordinance.  The applicant
anticipates the maximum proposed building height to be approximately 105-
feet to accommodate manufacturing equipment.  This Special Use Permit
request is for a maximum height of 115-feet to allow for a buffer as final
equipment and building design have not yet been completed.  The property is
located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, at 875 Innovation Way,
McCarran, Storey County, NV, Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-012-08.

(2) The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
McCarran planning area in which the subject property is located.  A discussion
supporting this finding for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.D of
this staff report and the contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special
Use Permit.

(3) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

(4) The Special Use Permit is not expected to result in substantial or undue adverse
effects on adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic
conditions, parking, public improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other
matters affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they
now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the
implementation of the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this



7 of 9 

title, and any other plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to an official notice, by the county, or other 
governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide growth and development. 

(5) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

(6) The Special Use Permit, with the recommended conditions of approval,
complies with the requirements of the 1999 Storey County Zoning Code,
Chapters 17.62 – Special Uses, and 17.37 – Heavy Industrial Zone.

B. Motion for denial.  Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,
the following findings with an explanation of why should be included in that motion.

(1) This denial is for Special Use Permit 2024-004 for additional building height
beyond the 75-feet allowed by the applicable zoning ordinance.  The applicant
anticipates the maximum proposed building height to be approximately 105-
feet to accommodate manufacturing equipment.  This Special Use Permit
request is for a maximum height of 115-feet to allow for a buffer as final
equipment and building design have not yet been completed.  The property is
located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, at 875 Innovation Way,
McCarran, Storey County NV, Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-012-08.

(2) The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements/findings in the Storey County 1999 Zoning Code Sections 17.62 --
Special Uses and 17.37 – Heavy Industrial Zone.

(3) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding use.

4. Recommended Conditions of Approval

A. Special Use Permit.   This approval is for a Special Use Permit.  The applicant requests
Special Use Permit 2024-004 for additional building height beyond the 75-feet allowed
by the applicable zoning ordinance.  The applicant anticipates the maximum proposed
building height to be approximately 105-feet to accommodate manufacturing
equipment.  This Special Use Permit request is for a maximum height of 115-feet to
allow for a buffer as final equipment and building design have not yet been completed.
The property is located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, at 875 Innovation Way,
McCarran, Storey County, NV, Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-012-08.

B. Requirements. The Permit Holder shall apply for all required permits and licenses, for
the project within twenty-four (24) months from the date of final approval of SUP No.
2024-004, and continuously maintain the validity of the permits/licenses, or this
approval shall be null and void. This SUP shall remain valid as long as the Permit Holder



8 of 9 

remains in compliance with the terms of this SUP and Storey County, Nevada State, and 
federal regulations.  

C. Transfer of Rights.  This special use permit, subject to its terms and conditions, may be
transferred by the special use permit holder, its successors, heirs, or assigns. The
subject property owner may lease the subject land; however, the subject property
owner and special use permit holder are ultimately responsible for ensuring compliance
with the special use permit requirements. Any and all transfers of Special Use Permit
No. 2024-004 shall be advised in writing to Storey County Planning Department 90 days
prior to assignee taking over operations. The new operators must sign and accept all
stipulations and requirements of the special use permit.

D. State/Federal Taxes. Whenever Nevada law requires the payment of a sales and/or use
tax, all materials and equipment purchased or rented for this project shall when feasible
be received in Storey County and the value reported as ‘county-of-delivery’ on the
Nevada Dept. of Taxation form TXR-01.01 ‘Sales/Use Tax Return’. Proof of appropriate
reporting is required prior to a ‘Certificate of Occupancy’ being issued.

E. Outdoor Lighting.  Any proposed exterior lighting shall comply with Chapter 8.02 (“Dark
Skies”) of the Storey County Code.

F. Separate Permits Required. This Special Use Permit shall not be construed to be a
permit for design or construction.  A separate Storey County plan review, fire safety
review, and building permit will be required.

G. Federal Aviation Administration.  The additional height shall follow all applicable
requirements of the Federal Aviation Administration.

H. Fire.  The applicant shall meet all regulations identified by the Storey County Fire
Protection District for development of this property.  The project shall be evaluated to
determine if there are any applicable elements of the proposed project that may require
inclusion in the respiratory consortium, the hose and nozzle consortium, ladder
reimbursement consortium and/or foam consortium or other such consortium at the
time of construction plan submittal.  The Fire Protection District shall have the final
authority on participation.

5. Public Comment

As of March 12, 2024, Staff have not received any comments from the public.

6. Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.



9 of 9 

7. Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose.  The motion for approval is
recommended by the Planning Commission and staff in accordance with the Findings of Fact
under Section 3.A of this report.  Those findings should be made part of the approval motion.  A
motion for denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown
in Section 3.B.  Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the Board of County
Commissioners should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and staff, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, I (commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2024-004 for additional
building height beyond the 75-feet allowed by the applicable zoning ordinance.  The
applicant anticipates the maximum proposed building height to be approximately 105-
feet to accommodate manufacturing equipment.  This Special Use Permit request is for
a maximum height of 115-feet to allow for a buffer as final equipment and building
design have not yet been completed.  The property is located within the Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center, at 875 Innovation Way, McCarran, Storey County, NV, Assessor’s
Parcel Number 005-012-08.

B. Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by the Planning Commission and staff, but in accordance
with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.B of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, I (commissioner), move to deny
Special Use Permit 2024-004 for additional building height beyond the 75-feet allowed
by the applicable zoning ordinance.  The applicant anticipates the maximum proposed
building height to be approximately 105-feet to accommodate manufacturing
equipment.  This Special Use Permit request is for a maximum height of 115-feet to
allow for a buffer as final equipment and building design have not yet been completed.
The property is located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, at 875 Innovation Way,
McCarran, Storey County, NV, Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-012-08.



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways in Storey
County.

• Recommended motion: Discussion Only.

• Prepared by: Jason Wierzbicki

Department: Public Works     Contact Number: 7758470958

• Staff Summary: Discussion of roads and projects throughout the County.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: no

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

     17



Storey County Liquor Licensing Board
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For consideration and possible approval of the First Reading On-Sale/Off-Sale
Liquor License. The applicant is Arturo Valadez, Bonanza Cantina located at 27 North C
Street, Virginia City, Nevada.

• Recommended motion: I (insert name) motion to approve the First Reading On-
Sale/Off-Sale Liquor License. The applicant is Arturo Valadez, Bonanza Cantina located
at 27 North C Street, Virginia City, Nevada.

• Prepared by: Dore Nevin

Department: Sheriff     Contact Number: 775-847-0959

• Staff Summary: First Reading On-Sale/Off-Sale Liquor License. The applicant is Arturo
Valadez, Bonanza Cantina located at 27 North C Street, Virginia City, Nevada.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      19



Storey County Liquor Licensing Board
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For consideration and possible approval of the Second Reading for On-Sale/Off-
Sale Liquor License. Applicant is Mitanshu Chandna, VC Mart Gas, Liquor & Grocery
located at 351 North C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

• Recommended motion: I (insert name) motion to approve the Second Reading On-
Sale/Off-Sale Liquor License. Applicant is Mitanshu Chandna, VC Mart Gas, Liquor &
Grocery located at 351 North C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440

• Prepared by: Dore Nevin

Department: Sheriff     Contact Number: 775847-0959

• Staff Summary: Second Reading for On-Sale/Off-Sale Liquor License. Applicant is
Mitanshu Chandna, VC Mart Gas, Liquor& Grocery located at 351 North C Street,
Virginia City, NV 89440

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       20



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of a change to the Fire District non-
represented pay chart to compress the steps from 10 to 7.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I (Fire
Commissioner) hereby motion to approve the Fire District to compress the steps in their
non-represented pay chart to 7, effective the first full pay period in July.

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department: Fire     Contact Number: 775-847-0954

• Staff Summary: The Fire District is requesting approval to compress the pay schedule
for non-represented positions from 10 steps to 7 steps, effective the first full pay period in
July.  This approval is needed at this time in order to include the changes in the proposed
budget.  A pay resolution with salary chart will be brought back to the Fire Board prior to
July 1, 2024 for approval.

•
• The purpose of this change is to align the non-represented pay chart with the union pay

chart which is 7 steps.  This change will also align the District with other fire districts in
the region whose pay charts are less than 10 steps.  Upon implementation, employees will
be placed at the step closest to his/her current salary that does not provide a decrease.
The Comptroller has estimated this change will be approximately $21,000 upon
implementation.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

      22



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Review and possible approval of the 2024-2025 Storey County Fire District
Tentative Budgets for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.

• Recommended motion: I, Commissioner __________, approve the 2024-2025 Storey
County Fire District Tentative Budgets for submission to the Nevada Department of
Taxation.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: The 2024-2025 Storey County Fire Protection District Tentative Budget
is presented with the department level budget submissions and the current tentative
budget projections. Although modifications may occur in the final budget, this initial plan
provides a comprehensive overview.  In this tentative budget the Fire District General
Fund revenues are sufficient to cover the operational expenses of the District. Key
increases include health insurance and Cost-of-Living Allowance increases outlined in
the Fire District CBA.  Transfers to other funds are currently estimated at approximately
$4,142,640 of which the majority will be transferred to the Fire Capital Projects Fund to
support various significant Fire equipment purchases and projects outlined in the most
recent Capital Improvement Plan. The tentative budget projects an ending fund balance
for the Fire District General Fund at approximately $6,200,000. The approval for the
Final FY25 Budget will be during the May 16, 2024, Storey County Commission
meeting.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: yes

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

     23



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued









































































Storey County Water and Sewer Board
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Review and possible approval of the 2024-2025 Storey County Water and Sewer
Tentative Budgets for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.

• Recommended motion: I, Commissioner __________, approve the 2024-2025 Storey
County Water and Sewer Tentative Budgets for submission to the Nevada Department of
Taxation.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: The 2024-2025 Storey County Water and Sewer Tentative Budgets are
presented with the department level budget submissions and the current tentative budget
projections. Although both funds project positive ending fund balances, their revenues do
not adequately cover operational costs and the bond payments. Consequently, there is a
reduction in the ending fund balances from the current year’s projections. Therefore,
there may be considerable changes in the final budget. The approval for the Final FY25
Budget will be during the May 16, 2024, Storey County Commission meeting.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: yes

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       25

































Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 1-2 hours

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Review and possible approval of the 2024-2025 Storey County Tentative Budget
for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.

• Recommended motion: I, Commissioner __________, approve the 2024-2025 Storey
County Tentative Budget for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: The 2024-2025 Storey County Tentative Budget is presented with the
department level budget submissions and the current tentative budget projections.
Although modifications may occur in the final budget, this initial plan provides a
comprehensive overview.  In this tentative budget the General Fund revenues are
sufficient to cover the operational expenses of the County. Key increases include a
potential increase in health insurance of 15%, pay schedule increases per Commission
approved increase and the Cost-of-Living Allowance outlined in the AFSCME Collective
Bargaining Agreement, and GSA additional staff in both the Sheriff’s office and
Communications. The tentative budget does not currently incorporate any increases
related to the Sheriff Union, as negotiations regarding these matters have not been
finalized. Transfers to other funds are currently estimated at approximately $15,000,000
and are primarily allocated to the Capital Projects Fund to support various significant
County projects outlined in the most recent Capital Improvement Plan. At this time the
Road Improvement Plan is not completed and therefore not reflected in this budget. AT
this time the tentative budget is projecting an ending fund balance for the General Fund at
approximately $16,800,000. The approval for the Final FY25 Budget will be during the
May 16, 2024, Storey County Commission meeting.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: yes

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

       27



____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued





































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Discussion and possible action enabling staff to remove Taylor Street Repair
Project, if necessary, from the FEMA disaster mitigation claims from the April 2023
disaster event due to potential delays caused by federal Section 106 compliance
requirements and other relevant matters, which may lead to previously board-approved
funds to not exceed $220,000 to possibly be non-reimbursable.  As a result, these funds
would be paid from the existing Roads maintenance budget.

• Recommended motion: i, [commissioner], move to enable staff to remove Taylor Street
Repair Project, if necessary, from the FEMA disaster mitigation claims from the April
2023 disaster event due to potential delays caused by federal Section 106 compliance
requirements and other properly related matters, causing previously board-approved
funds to not exceed $220,000 to be non-reimbursable and instead paid out of already
budgeted roads funds.

• Prepared by: Mke Northan

Department: Emergency Management     Contact Number: 7752304255

• Staff Summary: FEMA has imposed late and onerous requirements on the Taylor Street
Project to comply with Section 106 Historic Preservation requirements.  This could
significantly delay this project.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: 220000

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

        28



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
• A. 775 Electric LLC – Contractor / 130 Alamosa St. ~ Dayton, NV
• B. A Affordable Striping & Sealing – Contractor / 4440 E. Alexander Ste. A ~ Las

Vegas, NV
• C. Criterion Construction LLC – Contractor / 2175 Lakeside Dr. ~ Reno, NV
• D. LeafFilter North, LLC – Contractor / 1595 Georgetown Rd ~ Hudson, OH
• E. Legion Solar Power LLC – Contractor / 2645 W. Cheyenne Ave ~ North Las Vegas,

NV
• F. LTI Contracting – Contractor / 22631 N. 18th Ave. ~ Phoenix, AZ
• G. MMI Tank Inc. – Contractor / 3240 S. 37th Ave. ~ Phoenix, AZ
• H. Pavers by Porter – Contractor / 645 Tranquil Dr. ~ Sparks, NV
• I. Redline Technical Services LLC – Contractor / 5595 Tarzyn Rd. ~ Fallon, NV
• J. Tahoe Mini Crane Service – Contractor / 213 W. Gardengate Way ~ Carson City, NV

• Recommended motion: Approval.

• Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 775-847-0966

• Staff Summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are
normally approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next
meeting. A follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted
prior to the Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to
the new business license holder.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

       29



____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office March 25, 2024 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the April 02, 2024 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

SECOND READINGS: 

A. 775 Electric LLC – Contractor / 130 Alamosa St. ~ Dayton, NV

B. A Affordable Striping & Sealing – Contractor / 4440 E. Alexander Ste. A ~ Las Vegas, NV

C. Criterion Construction LLC – Contractor / 2175 Lakeside Dr. ~ Reno, NV

D. LeafFilter North, LLC – Contractor / 1595 Georgetown Rd ~ Hudson, OH

E. Legion Solar Power LLC – Contractor / 2645 W. Cheyenne Ave ~ North Las Vegas, NV

F. LTI Contracting – Contractor / 22631 N. 18th Ave. ~ Phoenix, AZ

G. MMI Tank Inc. – Contractor / 3240 S. 37th Ave. ~ Phoenix, AZ

H. Pavers by Porter – Contractor / 645 Tranquil Dr. ~ Sparks, NV

I. Redline Technical Services LLC – Contractor / 5595 Tarzyn Rd. ~ Fallon, NV

J. Tahoe Mini Crane Service – Contractor / 213 W. Gardengate Way ~ Carson City, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/2/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.

Agenda Item Type: Correspondence

• Title: Letter to the GOED per direction of the Storey County Board of County
Commissioners on 03/19/24.

• Recommended motion: No action.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: County Manager     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: The attached correspondence is a letter sent to GOED per direction of
the board at its 03/19/24 meeting.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      31




	Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the April 2, 2024, meeting.
	Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the February 20, 2024, meeting.
	Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the March 5, 2024, meeting.
	Business License First Readings -- Approval.
	Consideration and possible approval to direct county staff to begin researching the process of subdividing the county-owned land adjacent to Miner’s Park which is occupied by the Virginia City Community Center operated by Community Chest, Inc. and located
	Consideration and possible approval of expenditure not to exceed $10,400 to the Nevada Division of Water Resources for the assessed value of taxable property situated within the confines of the Groundwater Basin located in Storey County for FY2024/25 purs
	Consideration and possible approval to remove the 2022-23 & 2023-24 Personal Property unpaid tax bills for MH001114 in the amount of $24.50.  This Mobile Home burned in 2019 and the Assessor's office was not notified.  This structure is unlivable
	File 2024-002 Division of Large Parcels map.  The applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels.  Two existing large parcels of land with a total of approximately 1,530 acres will be merged and subdivided i
	Special Use Permit 2024-004. The applicant requests additional building height beyond the 75-feet allowed by the applicable zoning ordinance.  The applicant anticipates the maximum proposed building height to be approximately
	Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways in Storey County.
	For consideration and possible approval of the First Reading On-Sale/Off-Sale Liquor License. The applicant is Arturo Valadez, Bonanza Cantina located at 27 North C Street, Virginia City, Nevada.
	For consideration and possible approval of the Second Reading for On-Sale/Off-Sale Liquor License. Applicant is Mitanshu Chandna, VC Mart Gas, Liquor & Grocery located at 351 North C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.
	Consideration and possible approval of a change to the Fire District non-represented pay chart to compress the steps from 10 to 7.
	Review and possible approval of the 2024-2025 Storey County Fire District Tentative Budgets for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.
	Review and possible approval of the 2024-2025 Storey County Water and Sewer Tentative Budgets for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.
	Review and possible approval of the 2024-2025 Storey County Tentative Budget for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.
	Discussion and possible action enabling staff to remove Taylor Street Repair Project, if necessary, from the FEMA disaster mitigation claims from the April 2023 disaster event due to potential delays caused by federal Section 106 compliance requirements a
	For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings.
	Letter per direction of the Storey County Board of County Commissioners on 03/07/24.



